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Abingdon Learning Trust

Abingdon Learning Trust Trustees’ Report (continued)

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and audilor's report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a direciors’ report and strategic report under company law.

The Academy Trust operates as an academy for pupils aged 4 to 19 predominantly serving a catchment
area in north Abingdon. Abingdon Learning Trust operates 1 primary and 2 secondary academies in
Abingdon, Oxfordshire. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 2436 and had a roll of 2117 in
the school census of January 2022.

Structure, governance and management
Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’'s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
trustees of Abingdon Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The charitable company operates as Abingdon Learning Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details.

Members’® liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company
in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted
before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ indemnities

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
Officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

The Members may appoint by ordinary resolution up to 18 Trustees. The total number of Trustees,
including the Chief Executive Officer if they so choose to act as Trustee under Article 57, who are
employees of the Academy Trust, shall not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees. Members
have decided not to appoint the CEQO as a Trustee in order to keep separation between governance and
the trust’s operations, and ensure accountability, reflecting good practice as a Trust.

When there is a vacancy for the position of Member, Trustee or Local Governor, the current skills of the
group are reviewed and positions advertised in the local community and wider with recruitment material
making clear what is required in the role, and what particular skills and experience are being sought. Our
commitment to diversity and inclusion is reflected in our search for new members of governance, as it is
in our Recruitment Policy.

Trustee appointments are preceded by a request for a CV, pre-appointment checks (e.g. DBS and s.128)
and supported by a meeting between the candidate, Chair of Members and Chair of Trust Board (or their
appointment substitute) to ensure that applicants understand the responsibilities of the role and bring the
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Abingdon Learning Trust

skills, experience and aptitudes needed to fill the position. If multiple applications are received for a single
vacancy this meeting can take the form of a selection interview.

Under Article 100 Trustees have appointed Local Governing Bodies (known as Local Academy Boards
(LAB)) for each Academy in the Trust. Terms of reference (determined by the Trustees under Article
101), set the constitution of the LABs with Trustees appointing up to 12 Governors with a further 2 Staff
Governors and up to 2 parent governors (Article 101A). The Headteacher/Head of School is not a
governor, mirroring the CEO not being a trustee to retain separation of leadership and governance.

LAB Parent Governors are usually elected but can, if the number of parents, or individuals exercising
parental responsibility, standing for election is less than the number of vacancies, be appointed by
Trustees (Article 54).

The elected or appointed Parent Governors and those voting for these positions must be a parent, or an
individual exercising parental responsibility, of a registered pupil at the Academy overseen by the LAB at
the time of the election/appointment, but may not also be an employee at that academy.

The term of office for any Trustee and Local Governor shall be four years. Subject to remaining eligible
to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected at a General Meeting
or at an Annual General Meeting.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Recognising the importance of strong and effective governance, the Trust places importance on Trustee
induction and on-going training.

All Trustees receive regular training needs assessments on induction and then at least annually, to help
identify training requirements which the Trust delivers in a blended offer combining in-house sessions
with external options New Trustees receive information on how the Trust is structured, to key personnel
and to documents including specific information on safeguarding responsibilities, and meet with both
CEO and Chair of the Trust Board individually. Under the Code of Conduct, every member of the Trusts
governance community makes a commitment to attend at least one training event each year and to attend
at least one event at a school.

In addition to subscriptions to the National Governors Association (NGA) and the Confederation of School
Trusts (CST) for advice and guidance, including newsletters to support ongoing learning, the Trust has
an active Training Network and provides regular Governance Journals with information and advice.
During the reporting period training continued online with the Trust subscribing to the NGA Learning Link
facility to extend the range of online training events available to support Trustee and Governor
development.

The training programme for 2022/23 included Induction, Safeguarding, Understanding School Data and
Appeal Panels briefings.

Trustees are encouraged to attend additional courses linked to their areas of interest, development and
responsibility.

During the reporting period training courses moved back to face to face but was blended with NGA e-
learning, this included induction, health and safety for governors, strategic safeguarding, Ofsted
inspection updates and tailored training, exclusion panel hearings, and continued training on compliance,
safeguarding, Prevent and safe recruitment.

All involved in governance completed the NCSC Cybersecurity training.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)
Organisational structure

Abingdon Learning Trust currently has three schools in the Trust, with a governance structure which
consists of the Members, Board of Trustees (with three committees), a Secondary Board with the two
secondary schools and a Local Academy Board (LAB) for the primary school, the executive (including
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Operating Office (COOQ), Chief Technical Officer (CTO), Secondary
Director of Education (DSE) and a central team (Head of Finance, Trust Business Manager, Finance
Assistant, Admin Administrator, Payroll and HR Administrator, Facilities and Estates Manager) and a
Head and Leadership Team in each school.

The aim of the strategic leadership structure is to delegate and devolve responsibility, promote
involvement in decision making and ensure accountability with separation in roles at all levels. The Chief
Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer. In line with {h Trust's intent that Heads and their LABs run
their own schools, (if not requiring intervention), the scheme of delegation assigns substantial powers to
school-level decision making and is annually reviewed to ensure it remains fit for purpose and meets any
new statutory requirements.

There are three Trust committees-Finance and General Purposes (which is also the Audit Committee);
Educational Standards, and Compliance. Each has its own Terms of Reference outlining specific
responsibilities. The Terms of Reference for the Trust Board are clearly defined by the Articles of
Association.

The Trustees are responsible for setting overall policy, adopting the recommended business and Trust
improvement plans and approving budget -both for the central team and in each school, monitoring the
schools’ usa of budgets and other data, and making major decisions about the direction of the schoaols,
capital expenditure and staff appointments.

The Trusl's Execulive comprises the CED (pari-time), COO, CTO (part-time) and Director of Secondary
Education (DSE). Each has distinct areas of responsibility, and accountability is through the committees
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Abingdon Learning Trust

of the Trust Board. For example, the COO through the F&GP committee and the DSE through the
Educational Standards committee. Each school has its own executive - the Headteacher leading in each
school. There are regular cross-Trust executive meetings ensuring effective communication between the
5chools’ executive teams and the Trust executive team.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel, such as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), and the schools' Heads, are
currantly eamployed folloning tha School Teacher's Pay and Condilions Document (STPCD 2021), with
salary bands that are set according to the guidelines in the STPCD. Annual review based on performance
related assessment, is undertaken by the DSE and two LAB governors for the Heads in the secondary
schools; by the CEO and two local governors for the Headteacher in the primary school; by the CEO for
the Director of Secondary; and, a Member and two Trustees for the CEO.

The Chief Operating Officer is engaged and reviewed following the Green Book regulations, and the
salary is benchmarked against the annual Kreston Academies Benchmark Report. There is an annual
appraisal and review.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time  equivalent  employee
officials during the relevant period number

5 4.91

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees

0% 5

1%-50%

51%-99%

100%

Percentage pay bill spent on facility time
Provide the total cost of facility time £1,222
Provide the total pay bill £9,427,047
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on 0%

facility time, calculated as:

(total cost of facility time + total pay bill) x 100

Paid trade union activities
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Time spent on paid trade union activities such as a 0%
percentage of total paid facility time hours calculated
as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by
relevant union officials during the relevant period +
total paid facility time hours) x 100

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
Abingdon Learning Trust does not have any connected organisations or related party relationships.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The annual trust-wide survey took place in the spring which provides feedback on the Wellbeing and
Workload Charter that has been in place since 2019. Responses were positive with Heads and staff
taking on particular areas for improvement specific to the schools.

The trust-wide union group continued to meet regularly with the CEO, providing an opportunity for policy
and procedure to be consulted on and discussed. The meetings provided the opportunity for union
perspectives and policy to be discussed across the breadth of the schools and ftrust's work.
Representatives from support and teaching unions from all three schools attend and have made active
contributions during the year e.g. to policy reviews.

The Trust's Recruitment Folicy and all HR policies explicitly support the receipt of applications from
disabled persons; the steps that will be taken to support employees who become disabled; and the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons is monitored through the Compliance
Committee and the annual HR report to the Board.

Additionally, the Trust became a Disability Confident employer, registered with DWP, and has again
reviewed the Recruitment Policy with the Equality and Diversity Leads in schools to ensure that it both
attracts and retains employees in order to better reflect the pupil population and national society.

Requests for disabled staff to talk to trust executives about their experiences provided useful feedback
and, as a result, a new post to listen to, signpost sources of support and advocate for disabled staff will
be advertised for the 23/24 year.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy
trust

Abingdon Learning Trust fosters strong working relationships with all companies that we engage with.
By ensuring thal any suppliers and customers understand the Trust's eihos and the individual nature of
all our schools, we hope that through working in partnership with them, all parties will benefit from the
relationship that is forged. The Trust follows due process with regard to tendering for contracts, looking
where possible to contract for between 3 and 5 years to ensure that any relationship has time to develop.

The Trust will take reasonable steps to ensure our suppliers comply with our standards relating to the
Trust carbon net zero strategy reviewing their environmental responsibility, safeguarding, health and
safety, data protection, human rights and ethics. In 2022/23 the Trust engaged with a tendering process
for cleaning, one of the important attributes was their move towards carbon net zero. The Trust engaged
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Abingdon Learning Trust

Opcharge and have installed EV chargers across all three schools, this is for use by staff and the
community.

During 2022/23 a PSDS3a bid was successfully delivered with the installation of air source heat pumps
at Fitzharrys School.
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Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The Objects of Abingdon Learning Trust are described in the Articles of Association as:

a. the advancement, for public benefit, of education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, managing and developing
schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum; and

b. to promote, for the benefit of the inhabitants of Oxfordshire and the surrounding area the provision of
facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such facilities
by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic
circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the objective of
improving the condition of life of those inhabitants.

We adapted our aims and objectives in the light of our commitment to securing a Net Zero Carbon Emission
position by 2035.

Our aims:

a. We will nurture curiosity, character and independence, fuelling a passion for learning in all children
and staff to shape confident, creative, resourceful and resilient individuals.

b. We will support and deploy resources effectively and efficiently to make a valued contribution for
the good of all our young people, our economy and our community.

C. To achieve this we will secure:

*+ A broad, deep and balanced curriculum enabling choice and inclusive learning opportunities,
promoting aspiration and with educational initiatives that build a reputation for high quality
education on climate related issues.

. Financial sustainability and commercial resilience, with operational efficiency and effectiveness,
meeting our Net zero emission ambitions across our organisation,

. Expansion of the Trust to support the majority of school age children in the Abingdon area; and to
support investment in community provision, shared use of facilities, learning opportunities and
networks.

Our values

QUALITY: to create an outstanding learning community, including strong leadership and governance.
OPPORTUNITY: to provide the best opportunities for all children to reach their full potential.
COLLABORATION: to support a shared commitment and dedication to learning.

AMBITION: for continual improvement and to strive for excellence in all we do.

COMMUNITY: To be an active participant in our community, leading and supporting initiatives for the benefit
of all.

Short to medium improvement goals, informed by risk assessments and audits, are set annually via
Education and Operational improvement plans and Project objectives. These typically centre around
educational standards, financial sustainability, community (national and local) support, legislative change
and strategic goals.

Objectives, strategies and activities

During 2022/23 our priorities continued to be to focus on pupils with SEND and disadvantaged pupils in the trust,
and particularly on improving attendance and reducing persistent absenteeism. At the same time, ensuring that
all pupils were supported to progress and achieve well.
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These objectives have been progressed through local improvement plans, cross-trust collaborations,
research and strategies particularly focused around attendance, support for vulnerable groups and long-term
investments.

During 2022/23 we have:

set high targets for individuals and our schools

worked with students and parents to encourage regular school attendance

supported local governance where requested, with additional resource and expertise

delivered staff and governance training targeted at improvement priorities and supporting
professional development and succession, and

e used external reviews, including an External Review of Governance, to inform and develop our work
through professional challenge and advice.

Our facilities have been fully open to community groups with recent improvements in facilities bringing about an
increase in their use. Our relationship with Rush Common Preschool has led to the merger of the Preschool with
the Trust from 1 September 2023, extending the age range of Rush Common School from 4-11 to 2-11.

Dunmore Preschool, who had been renting a space at Fitzharrys School decided to close in July and the Trust is
now exploring how best to ensure that the community need for preschool places is supported, in liaison with
Oxfordshire County Council.

Public benefit
The Trustees of Abingdon Learning Trust have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance
on Public Benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties. The activities

undertaken to further the Abingdon Learning Trust's purpose for the Public Benefit include:

Providing an education that:

. is broad and balanced;

. promotes equality and celebrates British Values and the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical
development of pupils at the school and of society;

. prepares pupils at the school for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life;

. promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and understanding of specific

areas of study, skills and expertise.

The Abingdon Learning Trust admission criteria follows the requirements of the Code for Admission, which
explicitly supports equal access to the schools for all children, including Looked After or previously Looked
After; those with SEND.

The Trust welcomes applications from all children who live in the community and who meet the admissions
criteria.

Trust schools provide advice for families about safeguarding, on-line safety and wellbeing for families
regularly, with clear signposts to government and charity resources that can be accessed and used at home.
This last year, this information was supplemented by sources of support and aid to help families and staff
with the cost of living crisis.

Abingdon Learning Trust provides additional support to other local schools and schools within Oxfordshire,
and beyond, through a variety of formal and informal ways. For example, support to a Trust in Herefordshire
of & primary and secondary school, and in ‘sponsoring” a local prajact wilh 2 primary schools laoking at the
engagement of pupils with SEMH, and with 4 other local schools on developing alternative provision
opportunities.

We have maintained our engagement with and support for local schools including providing
premises/caretaking support, advice on safeguarding and health and safety. We continue to provide catering
services to a number of local primary and special schools.
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Placements for trainee teachers from Oxford University and Oxford Brookes University are offered along with
School Centred Initial Teacher Training students and work experience students. Links with employers for our
own students’ work placements and experience have been refreshed bringing a range of opporunities back
to KS4 and post-16 programmes.

The Trust actively engages in charity work at a local and national level, through a range of themed activities,
events and special days throughout the year in its schools.

School pupils continue with their work on Duke of Edinburgh activities, provided Remembrance service
support in the town, and staff provided expert training in Safeguarding to schools in Oxfordshire.

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Introduction and overview of the 22/23 academic year

We are still seeing the impact of the pandemic, especially in the lack of return to normal attendance seen
nationally for some students. A cross-Trust attendance strategy has been implemented, which is having
some impact, and this will continue into 23/24 with a particular focus on disadvantaged students.

Safeguarding activity and management and governance remains a strength, with increasing robustness of
our H&S culture.

Rush Common Preschool, an independent preschool, formally joined the Trust as part of Rush Common
School at the start of the new school year 23/24, with a capital refurbishment of the bungalow on the school
site in progress for a 1 January 2024 move to being fully on site. The primary school has changed its age
range to 2-11 from 4-11.

During the year we said goodbye to the Director of Secondary Education, who moved to a promoted post, to
the Headteacher at John Mason School, and to the Acting Head at John Mason School who has gone onto
substantive Headship elsewhere. We welcomed a new Director of Education to the Trust.

Key successes

With the much publicised return to pre-pandemic standards for public examinations in the secondary phase,
we were pleased with the outcomes for students.

Fitzharrys School was inspected by Ofsted and received a very positive report affirming many strengths and
that the school remained good, having been last inspected in 2016, before it joined the Trust.

Successes this year include significantly better than national outcomes at KS2 in Rush Common School,
with very high value added, improving on the very impressive 2022 results.

Fitzharrys School year 11 students achieved positive value added with outcomes above those in 2019, (the
year that this exam season has been based on prior to the pandemic).

At John Mason School, the proportion of top grades was near national with strong value added in French,
Geography and Computing.

In the joint sixth form provision across Fitzharrys and John Mason Schools, JMF6, A level outcomes enabled
the majority of students to secure places at university, and apprenticeships with top companies.
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At both GCSE and A level there were some extremely impressive individual sludénis’ performances.

The Trust commissioned an external review of governance by the Confederation of School Trusts (CST). It
found that the Board discharged its duties effectively with the skills and expertise necessary to govern the
trust and its schools well. In the spirit of continuous improvement, local governance continues to be a focus
for the Trust.

We were selected to be audited twice in 2023! The first was on the use of the Low Carbon Skills Fund grant
of just under £30k received in the previous year, and the second on Financial Management and Governance.
Both audit outcomes were very positive demonstrating that internal control and processes are robust and
that money is spent as intended.

Our Net Zero work continues and is detailed further on in this report, and the £1.12M grant from the Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme was completed.

With continued reliance on supplemental online learning and for communication, all school staff, governors
and trustees completed the NCSC cybersecurity training again to ensure that this remains a clear priority for
the Trust. The move to one single Managed Service Provider has benefited the schools and trust-working
significantly with greater consistency in filtering and in provision of regular monitoring data.

The use of financial benchmarking has continued to enable effective financial management, allowing the
board to approve a substantial central school improvement budget for 2022/23, without a change to staff or
resources at the frantline’. This budget is available for fargeted school improvemeant work or for Heads and
LABs to request further resource to support their own spending.

In 2018, we set ourselves the target to have a total staff spend below 76% in schools and this is moving
towards the target without loss to frontline numbers or quality. Savings have been put back to support
schools' priorities. It is important to note that teacher supply has been a challenge this year, and appointment
of support staff has also been more difficult than in previous years.

The Trust's focus on safeguarding continues with the trust-wide group providing support to DSLs, Heads
and safeguarding governors providing an opportunity to stay connected with others, sharing good practice
and evidencing the Trust's ‘stronger tegether mollo. A similar H&S network brings support and a greater
consistency to this critical area of work in the schools.

We have maintained trust-wide appointments of site staff and where suitable, teachers, bringing together
available sums of money within individual school budgets to appoint much needed additional colleagues.
Similarly, we have adapted the support available through the Central Team to the schools over the year in
line with requests and feedback.

This was the second year of a 3 year fixed price deal where all energy in the Trust has been either from
renewable energy sources or fully carbon offset. This has buffered school and Trust budgets from the
significant inflationary costs of energy in the year.

Financial KPIs

The majority of the Abingdon Leaming Trust's income is obtamed from the Educalion and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The
grants received from the ESFA during the twelve months ended 31 August 2023 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

In accordance with thi Charities Statement for Recommended Praclice ‘Accounting and Reporting by
Charities’ (SORP 2019) capital grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income
in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges
over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.
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During the twelve months ended 31 August 2023, total expenditure of £14,831,482 (including depreciation
of £900,946) was less than recurrent grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources of
£15,378,009.

As at 31 August 2023 the net book value of fixed assets was £27,245,460 and movements in tangible fixed
assets are shown in note 14 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing
education and the associated support services to the pupils of Abingdon Learning Trust.

The Local Government Pension Scheme as at 31 August 2023 held a deficit of £795,000, the breakdown of
which is detailed within note 24 in the Financial Statements.

Key performance indicators

A range of KPIs have been agreed by the Board with evaluation ranges set to target performance above
national averages. Assessments against the KPIs are available to the regular meetings of the Board to
support monitoring and impact assessments through the year.

Educational standards:

Fitzharrys School was inspected by Ofsted and received a very positive report affirming many strengths and
that the school remained good, having been last inspected in 2016, before it joined the Trust.

Successes this year include significantly better than national outcomes at KS2 in Rush Common School,
with very high value added, improving on the very impressive 2022 results.

Fitzharrys School year 11 students achieved positive value added with outcomes above those in 2019, (the
year that this exam season has been based on prior to the pandemic).

At John Mason School, the proportion of top grades was near national with strong value added in French,
Geography and Computing.

In the joint sixth form provision across Fitzharrys and John Mason Schools, JMF6, A level outcomes enabled
students to secure places towards their chosen career paths - at university, and into apprenticeships with top
companies.

At both GCSE and A level there were some extremely impressive individual students’ performances.

Attendance in the schools overall is either at or above national levels but there are some groups of students,
especially in the secondary phase, where attendance levels are far lower than the overall figures. The
recently introduced attendance strategy in the secondaries shows early signs of improvement but this
remains a priority area for the next year - to get attendance of every pupil to at least national levels.

Inclusion of all students in the secondary sector remains the main area of challenge and focus for the Board
where, despite some improvements in attainment, gaps in the achievement of groups of pupils remain,
although not at the level seen nationally.

Operational efficiency:

Increased financial efficiency has been possible through savings derived from joint procurement, shared
staffing across the schools and using national benchmarks to support budget setting at school level. This
has resulted in a trust-wide school improvement fund for use by schools, retained staffing levels in the schools
and enhanced support from the central team.

The intake into John Mason School remains around the available Pupil Admission Number (PAN), with the
intake into Fitzharrys continuing to rise, demonstrating the increased popularity of the school. Numbers into
Reception al Rush Common School aré now at PAM, reflecting the community's trust in the school as s
reputation for its great quality of education the school is increasingly widely known. Whilst the number of
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spare pupil places available across the Trust is reducing, there remains capacity at Fitzharrys especially and
in the sixth form.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company

The Trust's objaciives ara o advance for the public benafit education in the United Kingdom, maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing schools which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum. Over the
course of the academic year the outward facing aspects of the Trust were refreshed with new websites for
the Trust and Rush Common School. A presentation to the Abingdon Partnership of Schools shared the
outcomes of the joint projects that the Trust sponsored for the wider benefit. The Trust became a member of
the B4 business network to extend its influence as a major employer in Abingdon.

Financial review

Abingdon Learning Trust practices through its Board, namely the Board of Trustees and the constituted
subcommittees, risk management principles. Any major risks highlighted at any sub-committee are brought
to the attention of the main Board with proposed mitigating actions and they continue to be reported until the
risk is adequately mitigated.

The Board of Trustees accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of its operations but maintains an objective
not to run unacceptable levels of risk in any area. The subjective nature of this process requires major risks

o be resalved by the Board of Trustees collectively, whilsl more mindr risks are deall wilh by the trust's
Executive. A Risk Register is maintained and reviewed at regular intervals.

Reserves policy

The policy of Abingdon Learning Trust is to maintain a sufficient surplus to uphold the following y&ar's budget
against financial uncertainty and then to transfer recognised surpluses to reserves for investment. The
Reserves policy states; Each school within the Trust and the Trust Central Team, will work towards reserves
of one manth's salary costs and contingency requirements over the next 3-5 years, (primarily from
Unrestricted Funds) to be agreed by the Trust Finance Committee.

At 31 August 2023 the total funds comprised:

2023

£
Unrestricted 739,592
Restricted fixed asset funds 27,555,520

Page 14



General Annual Grant (GAG) 363,722

Pension reserve (795,000)
Other restricted funds (including Salix loan) (55,246)
27,808,588

The deficit on the pension reserve relates to the non-teaching staff pension scheme where, unlike the
teachears” scheme, separate assels are held 1o fund future liabililes a5 discussed in nola 24. The deficil can
be met in the longer term from any combination of increased employer or employee contributions, increased
government funding or changes to scheme benefits. The restricted funds will be spent in accordance with
the terms of the particular funds. Unrestricted funds are for use on the general purposes of the Academy, at
the discretion of the Trustees. The aim of the Trustees is to increase this reserve to meet future working
capital requirements.

Funds have been allocated to the redevelopment of school bungalow into a preschool with expected costs

around £200k (including grant from Christ's Hospital of Abingdon, and transferred reserve from Rush
Common Preschool, as well as Trust reserves), upgrade of school maintenance at Fitzharrys of £50k, further
planned work on sports courts across the secondary schools of £100k. Within the reserves there is a carry
forward balance for £310k which is ringfenced for school capital activities.

Investment policy

Abingdon Learning Trust seeks to invest surplus funds in a manner to obtain the best possible return
consistent with prudent minimisation of risk and with strategic plan of the Trust for deployment of resources.
The Trust is committed to investment with reputable and ethical investors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust Board has implemented a risk management strategy to promote the identification and management
of threats and unceriainiies which threaten the Trust's vision and objectives. School and Trust risk registars
are used to set out and monitor steps taken to identify risks. Registers are regularly reviewed to ensure they
remain up to date and effective. Areas of particular focus are:

Educational: the performance of pupils and students is a key indicator of the trust delivering its charitable
objects, complying with the ESFA funding agreement and meeting the needs of students and the local
community. If standards are not met this leads to risks of poor opportunities for students, intervention by
Regional School Commissioner and or declining rolls with subsequent impact on funding.

These risks are mitigated by
e A focus on the recruitment, training and development of staff as we know that great staff have
the biggest impact on pupils’ learning;
e Continual monitoring of pupil and student performance so that they are supported to achieve
their best;
e Active use of the Trusl's school improvement fund and staff to invest in projects that support
individual school and cross-trust improvement work.
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Financial: operating schools within budget to consider cost pressures and changing needs in order to ensure
the long-term sustainability of the Trust and avoid risks to the standard and continuity of provision.

These risks are mitigated by

e Building generous increase assumptions into early budget submissions, particularly to consider
uncertainties around the costs of supplies, utilities and staff pay rises.

e Contract management to secure best value and protections against price rises

e Accessing grant funding to secure investments e.g. premises improvement, net zero
developments;

e Continual monitoring of spending against budgets and projections to understand and manage
variations.

Reputational: risks of injury, financial penalties and loss of community confidence (with potential financial
impacts through falling rolls) arise if the Trust is not able to meet legal, social and ethical responsibilities
including ensuring that pupils, staff, property, systems and data are kept safe and the Trust is able to respond
positively to changing statutory and social needs.

These risks are mitigated by

e Strategic planning to identify and plan for change, including for example
o Rapid development and use of ICT to support teaching and operations: addressed
through the Trust's ICT sirategy
o Increasing reliance on online systems alongside cybersecurity threats to the
educational sector; addressed through rollout out of Cyber Essentials Standard over
the next 2 years and routine staff training in both GDPR and cybersecurity
e Continual monitoring and regular use of external audits and reviews to assure compliance and
promote continual improvement
e Purchase of appropriate advice and insurance e.g. RPA scheme to provide legal support and
funding if required.

Estates management: Abingdon Learning Trust has an Estate Strategy which provides the framework and
direction for a Trust vision that will be delivered over a 3 to 5 year period whilst being reviewed annually. The
Finance and General Purposes Committee will monitor and report to the Trust Board on the progress that is
made in delivering the Estate Strategy and understand the role of the estate in helping to meet educational
objectives.

Abingdon Learning Trust strives to create safe, exciting and inspiring learning spaces for our pupils, both
indoors and outdoors, further enhancing their educational experience. The Trusts continuously improves the
resilience of our school estates, both land and buildings, leading improvement projects and the day to day
running of the estate to enable school leaders to focus on creating academic excellence in their settings. The
Trust is consistently promoting innovation in energy efficiency, links to the curriculum to aid learning and are
committed to seek new ways in which to build sustainability, thereby reducing our carbon footprint so that we
can meet our net zero ambitions by 2035, and ultimately creating a better future for our children.

This estates and facilities management plan is designed to make sure that we manage our estate to achieve
our charitable objectives. Strategic estate management helps the trust to:

e  Make decisions supported by evidence
. Use our resources effectively
. Maximise the estata’s value to the trust

To manage the trust estate strategically we must:

e Understand what we need to do with the estate to meet our education goals
Have good governance arrangements

Assign clear responsibilities across the trust for managing the estate

Make and implement plans; and

Review and track performance
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In order to make sure the Trust is compliant with all legal and other requirements, we carry out the following

actions:

e Regular compliance checks in school by school staff which are tailored to the needs of the individual

schools estate. These are recorded on our estate compliance system.

e Regular compliance checks in school are carried out by a competent contractor, where this is required by

legislation or Policy. These are recorded in our estate compliance system.
o Regular audits of compliance carried out either internally or externally and recorded in our estate
compliance system.

o Reporting of compliance to be considered by the Board of Trustees, at local academy commitiee and by

the head teacher of each school

¢ Inthe event non-compliance is identified, an action plan is put in place to return our estate to full compliance.

This year the school has commissioned external surveys to confirm there is no RAAC in the estates. Where

there are larger projects related to roof work, CIF bids will be submitted again in December 2024.

Fundraising

Fundraising i& linked to the Trust's underpinning values of community, opporlunity and ambition. Pupils and
students raise money for a variety of local and national causes. Funds are raised in each school through a
range of activities suitable to the setting. This year has seen a start to the return to the usual levels of activity
in this area as pandemic restrictions were removed. School Councils are involved in identifying the charities
that money is raised for each year.

The majority of fundraising takes place through directly supervised activities. No complaints were received
and due care was taken to protect vulnerable pupils and adults from any potential harm during fundraising
activities.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Key to our ‘walui added’ as a Trust, both within and beyond our schools, are our Net Zero Carbon ambitions:

1. Being Net Zero Carbon in our Scope 1 and 2 emissions by the end of one school ‘gemneratian’ of pupils*
by 2028;

2. A 50% reduction in our Scope 3 emissions by 2028;

3. Being Net Zero Carbon in our Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions in two generations of school pupils by 2035.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
Although we are not required to report on this, we do as part of our commitment to reaching our net zero
goals.

School Consump GHG emissions -
tion
2022-
kWh

tCO2e per annum

Fitzharrys Electric 233,235

Fitzharrys Gas 709,489 130
175

John Mason Electric 108,405 21
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John Mason Gas 963,337 175
196
Rush Common Electric 41,975 8
HH
Rush Gas 218,365 40
Common
48
ALT - GH emissions 419
- Tons tCO2e per
annum
Number of
Students 2125

Intensity

Ratio

Overall, the Trust's carbon intensity ratio has increased compared to the previous year, dué 1D 1ha increase
in electrical consumption after the installation of the air source heat pumps. We should see this being offset
across time by a reduction in the use of gas.

We undertook a large scale ICT project to migrate school-based server function to the cloud. This has had
the impact of reducing the energy usage by around 80% in this area with the added benefit of reducing the
embedded carbon, silicon and rare earth metals used by the schools in the former server equipment. There
is an additional saving through the associated removal of air conditioning energy use in the server rooms.

At the whole Trust level, we have undertaken the second analysis of catering emissions over a 3 week period
in January 2023. We were surprised to see that the C intensity had increased! As a result we have reviewed
menus to reduce the use of frozen vegetables and pork products. We will undertake a similar analysis in
January 2024 to see how this effects C emissions.

We have also replaced one Trust vehicle with an electric one from diesel.
Our electricity switched in October 2021 to fully renewable-sourced, and all gas use continues to be offset.

We were successful in a grant of over £1M to decarbonise heating at Fitzharrys School, from the Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme. The project, which included the installation of air source heat pumps
completed in the summer of 2023 and will bring about a reduction in C use of 64% by 2028.

Each school has undertaken work in this priority area in the last 12 months:
Rush Common School

We are continuing to place emphasis on climate change in our Geography curriculum through our progression
of knowledge and understanding of climate change from Reception to Year 6. In Year 5, children carry out a
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project in which they learn about climate change in more depth, analyse the carbon emissions of the school,
and create a plan to reduce this.

Last year we ran an eco-club alongside our school parliament. As a result of their work, new crisp packet bins
are in various locations in the school, so that they can be collected and appropriately recycled. The club have
also raised awareness of the importance of not wasting energy (for instance turning off lights when not
needed), through a poster campaign. Last year Fiona Hammans, visited the eco-club to have a valuable
discussion about what was happening at Trust and school level.

In October 2022, Friends of Rush Common (FoRC) were nominated in the Net Zero category at the Big
Sustainability Awards in Southampton. They were shortlisted as a finalist for reducing waste as a charity over
the past year. This was achieved through the list below.

Reducing the use of plastic, specifically single use plastic.

Using secondhand items as prizes.

Selling secondhand items as fundraisers

Opting for selling fully recyclable materials (i.e. aluminum drinks cans rather than plastic drinks bottles)
Buying items that benefit communities

Selling secondhand uniform, halloween costumes and christmas jumpers

Holding a Plastic Tat Amnesty for prizes for the summer fete

Giving out plantable medals for the colour run

Selling predominately recyclable cans at the fete

Using reusable cups at the discos rather than disposable cups

Fitzharrys School
The School has supported a number of activities in support of the Trust's Net Zero Ambitions:

Carbon Research

This year, we had 2 groups of year 9 researchers working on projects linked to reducing our carbon footprint.
One, was continuing the work started the previous year, investigating how students come to school. They used
a different methodology and found that about 60% of our student body walk or cycle to school. This is close to
what was found last year. It would be great to install new bike sheds to encourage more students to cycle to
school.

The second project looked at the temperature in our classrooms and they fund that students overall think that
classes are too cold except for a few too hot ones (the ones with more sun). As space heating amounts to 17%
of the United Kingdom carbon dioxide emissions (https://es.catapult.org.uk/guide/decarbonisation-
heat/#:~:text=How%20much%20does%20heating%20contribute,amount%200f%20cooling)%20%3D%2017%25
), our students suggested that the next steps for our school would be to allow individual blocks or classrooms

to control the temperature individually, rather than controlled over the whole school. This would allow the
blocks that have a higher natural temperature to shut off the heating earlier, réducing aur schaal’s carbon

footprint. This technology already exists in the form of thermostats that are controllable at a room-by-room
level, there are even companies that can tailor for schools (https://heatboss.co.uk/our-sectors/schools-

nurseries/).

Rewilding

Over the last 12 months, we have:

e maintained the 30 trees we planted last year
e planted a further 30 trees at the front of school, with the help of the local community
e taken steps to turn both of these areas into meadow spaces
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e significantly improved the wildlife value of the pond, by removing a prolific invasive species, reshaping
and relining, building a bog garden, and planting in all three pond sections

e experimented with additional wildflower spaces, and continued to develop our pollinator habitat with
additional planting

® Duilt additional nesting spaces for solitary bees, and created hoverfly lagoons, alongside last {¥&ar’s
work on creating nature-rich habitat for bugs

We have had, thus far, two main objectives, which are: to enhance the wildlife value of our spaces in school,
focusing in particular on invertebrates in the knowledge that these will support other species; and to foster
community engagement in wildlife and nature, so that our young people and families have opportunities to
engage in the work and understand what they can do at home. The movement is starting to gather momentum
and our next step is to create a more substantial three-year plan for sustainability and Wild Fitzharrys.

John Mason School

The eco-team of students from Key Stage 3, 4 and 5 have been successful in getting JMS accredited as an Eco-
school and we will proudly fly the green flag on site. Students were thrilled to be invited to the Annual Meeting
and Mayor Making at St Helen's Church in Abingdon. They were invited there to recognise their efforts
towards the Ahingdon Schools' Biodiversity project. The award was presented by Mayor Andy Foulsham and
they received £500 which will be put towards new equipment, more plants and anything that will be able to
promote biodiversity at JMS this academic year.

As part of the application to be known as a "Green school’, Year 8 students came up with the "Eco-code’ for
team JMS. This will be rolled out across the school throughout the academic year. Bug hotels and bird houses
were built and then the site team put them up around the school in the appropriate areas, to benefit the
wildlife across the JMS site.

A group of students were taken to a climate conference at Stowe School, where they met MPs and TV
personalities such as Chris Packham, all of whom had a climate message for them. Students learned about the
‘Patchwork rainfarest’ praject. This project idea was emailed to parents who then bought areas of land to
protect them from deforestation and to promote sustainability of our natural world worldwide.

To inform our students about the importance of reducing our carbon footprint students undertook lessons on
sustainability and resource usage. STEM visitors were invited in to talk to our students about how they can be
sustainable with our food, water and energy vse daily at home and at school. Anne Smarnt from “Abingdon
against plastic’ did an assembly to all students on how to reduce the use of single use plastics.

The eco-club organised many second-hand clothing events where students came and to avail of the free
uniforms and other school clothing and equipment. This initiative has the aim of reducing the problem of fast
fashion, and helping families who may struggle with the cost of living across the UK at present.

Across the year guest speakers visited JMS to talk about sustainable regeneration of areas. Groups of students
entered a nationwide competition called 'My Environment, My Future' - which one of the groups won. This
competition had more than 800 entries nationwide.

The Humanities faculty are introducing the "My Environment, My Fulurg’ project as part of the curriculum in
KS3 and 4 curriculum to challenge our students' current thinking in these areas.

Plans for future periods

Objectives for the coming year fall broadly into three strands:

Educational:
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For the next academic year, the focus is on inclusion - ensuring that every pupil and student attends regularly,
progresses in their learning and is supported to achieve their best.

Pupils who have SEND and/or are in receipt of the pupil premium grant, continue to be prioritised in all
schools. In the next year, an effective cross-trust strategy is to be developed and implemented, with
individual school adaptations, to ensure that we are able to target the right support to pupils as they need it
and make reasonable adaptations to enable all pupils to make strong progress and achieve their potential.

To provide additional resource into this area, the School Improvement Budget will be deployed according to
a needs assessment, to each school, under the direction of the Director of Education (DoE).

To bring the learning about what works for us in school improvement terms, the DoE will be leading the
Heads and their teams in bringing together a school improvement strategy for the Trust that can be readily
understood and implemented as required.

Operational:

In order to further develop our staff, so that they can continue to have a positive and effective impact on our
pupils and students, we have developed our professional pathways programme. We will enhance our offer,
for professional growth, including the opportunity for secondments and work shadowing, both within and
beyond our Trust, when appropriate.

With all schools and the central team now on one ICT domain and cloud-based servers across the trust, this is
the first year that we can begin to realise the opportunities and power for teaching and learning, curriculum
development and administration and operations through one system. Increased security and access will support
staff in this, as we move further towards a net zero position and for positive impact on learning, and working.

We will continue to work in partnership in our communities to add value through the work of the Trust, as well
as seeking opportunities to grow so that we have the size, talent and quantum of resource to invest in all of
our schools to ensure a great education for every child and young person.

Strategic:

Developing our local offer to lead and make an active contribution to collaborative work through a partnership
programme that helps raise standards and creates opportunities for students and staff beyond the three
schools in the Trust.

In time, and as opportunity arises, our plans include growing the number of primary schools to bring a greater
balance in numbers between the primary and secondary phases within the Trust.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
Neither Abingdon Learning Trust nor its Trustees are acting as custodian Trustees.

Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:

» there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable companys auditor is unaware

+ the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees’ repor, incorporating a siralegic report. was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on and signed on the Binard's bahall by:
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J Hopkins

Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0)

Jonathan Hopkins
Chair of Trustees 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
(4 Company Limited by Guarantea)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trusieses, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Abingdon Learning Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than elimmate the nsk of fadure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonabbe
and not absolute assurance against material misstatemeant or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and faken accound of tha guidance in DFE's Govermance Handbook and
Academy Trust Handbook and compeatency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delagabed the day-io-day responsibilily 1o the Chiel Execulive Officer, as accounting
officer, for ensunng financial contrals conform with the requirements of both propriety and good fnancial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to il in the Tunding
agrepment between Abingdon Learning Trosl and the Secreflary of Slate for Educalion. They are also
responsible for reporting to the board of Trustess any malerial weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

Governance

Abingdon Learning Trust — Diversity Statemeant.
In considering dmwersity in relation to the wider governing body (Members, Trustees and Local Schiool
Governors). The Trust has a number of objectives:

1. To ensure that ihere is a diversily of skills experlise and life expenence within the goveming body which
enable robust discussions and informed holding to account of the Trust's execulive team;

2. To broadly reflect the community it serves;

3.  That, notwithstanding the make up of the wider governing body, there are slructures and processes within
place 1o ensura that diversily is properly considered in govaernance for the banefit of all pupils in our schools.

The Trusi noles thal under GDP Regulations some diversily questions count as ‘special calegory’ data. Given
the size of the govaming body this would inevitably lead to the identification of Individual governors. The Trust
tharafore chooses nol to publish diversity data on its aoverning body. _ _ .

Does the Trust have a range of skills expartise anc |ife experience within the governing body?

The governing bodies all take accounl of the need for experience in parlicular areas for elfective governance,
These are sxplicily considered by Governing bodies whan recruiting for new governors. Recommendations for
Local Academy governar appointments are scrutinsed by Trustees and recommendations for Trustee
appoaniments are scrulimised by Membears,

There are requirements for categories of governor (parents) bulll into the Artdicles of Association of the Trust.
These requirements are mel by the alection of parent and stafl governors anto schoal governing bodies by the
staff and parent communities,

Recruiimenlt of govermnors welcomes people with a diverse range of backgrounds, Where appropriate,
recruitment literature will indicate the kind of skills, interest, or experence that the Trust is looking for.

The Trust uses a variety of recruitment meihods lo atiracl new govemors;

Farent and Siafl elected governors,
MNatianal govermance recruitmeant senvicas e.q. Govarnars for Schools to provide braadih;
Personal networks.

Dioes the governing body reflect the community it serves?

The Trust measures itsalf against the data published by the Vale of White Horse[1l] (VoWH). The Trust

recogmizes thal wilh a relatively small governing body i Is easy for one or iwo people to upsel the balance in
relation to the wider community and it has thersfore exercised judgement in measuring itsell against the
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Governance (continued)

information for WolWH

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

Valke of While Horse Criterion Measura

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Trusi Compansion

Ethnicity

Age

Gandar

Raligion

WoWWH is 81% ethnically while

Population pyramid

The gender split for VoWH is 50.4%
womaean and 48.6% man.

In Wo'WH the largest groups are
Christian  4B8% and  Olher
(inclhuding none) 48.2%

The Trust is very closelyin line wilh
this figura

The age profile of those invalved in
governance s older than (lhe
distrnbution for the arcss as a whale,
This reflects tha facts that

Governors arg all adulls [though
faking pupis’ views Inlo account is
an esplict responsibility  for
governing bodies and 8 range of
methods are wsed (o do this);

The parent group within governance
i slightly older because of the
Trust's primanydsecondary balance,
Mate that this does make the

GoveErming body e
representative of the schools’
communities.

There are more wamen than men in
the Trust governing body but given
that each governor represenis over
2% ol the governor populabion the
balance is reasonably
representativie,

Tha Trust does not explicitly collect
data on religion but is broadly in line
with the figures for the area.

Boes the Trust have structures and processes in place to ensure that diversity is properly considerad in

governance

Soma Trustees and all school governors have porifolio roles which allow them 1o develop deeper understanding
of different areas of diversity e.g.. Inclusion governors consider ihe issues relating 1o looked afier children. SEM
governars encounter a range of diverse students,

Farents with experence of SEN children are regular applicants for and are appointed 1o governor rolas,

There is a series of aclivilies wilhin the scheduled governance calendar which give governors the opporiunities
o understand the experience of pupils within thair schools. These are based on:

- Analysis of data e.g., allendance, behaviour, and oulcomes data are all interrogated so thal governors can
understand the performance of schools in relalion 1o aspects of diversity;

- Personal visits 10 schools which include discussions with stafl and pupils;

- Review of policies and the actions taken to implemant them e.g. in relation to PSHE paolicies and programmes;
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Feadback from siakeholder aroups — pupils, parents, and stafl.

The Trust does use the questions contained in detalled diversity questionnaires as a prompt 10 ensure thal
ihose involved in governance are aware of diversity issues and can seek addilional support as appropriale.

Challenges for the Trust in relation to diversity

The Trust is currenily centred on jusl three schools within the Abingdon area, The pool of frusteesigovernors is
heavily populated by people from the local area. There are diversity considerations related to the Trusts growth
plans. These include:

- Congideration of how tha Trust would accommodate the demands of faith schools (the existing schools are all
pradominanily secular):

- Consideration of how the Trust would adapt to taking on schoals outside the immediaie Abingdon area. Thisis
less likely to be an issue for school governing bodses, bul is a consideration for the make up of the Board.

- Wale of White Horee Demicaraphics, Age, Ethnicity, Raligion, Wellbeing (varbes.com)

Skills based appointments and clear dalegation io the threa Trus! commilleées and school Local Academy
Boards ensures that the Board is well placed 1o support and challenge the e=pansion af the Trust withoul
compromising scruliny and suppor for the high ambitions for its curent schools,

Local School governors were more able to visd their schooks than i the last 2 years and focus was on  reviews
of safeguarding, haalth and safaty and educational mprovement. We hald an open workshop 1o bring governars
and trustees together in October, and again in December, following the remole working that had charactersed
e last fwo years.

The delayed External Review of Governance ook place providing affirmation of the strengths collectively seen
on the Trust Board and indicating areas for enhanced governance across the schools and the Board, Taking full
advantage of this, a new struclure - thee same for each phase and schoal was implemented in September 2023,
building on the review and what has worked well in previous years.

To support eflective oversighl and assurance the Trus! commissioned external avdits 1o assess strenglhs and
improvement priorities in educational standards in each school, the new Chart of Accounts and cybersecurity.
Meted vigited Fitsharmys School and the resultan report gave strong eslemnal suppor fod the Improvement Leen
al the achoaol in recent years.

All rustess and governors annually make declarations of inlerest with details held on registers usad 10 snsure
that no conflicts of Interest arise particulary with regard to decision making, project or procuremant activity, All
atbendess are required 1o decare any conflicls of interest against agenda dems at the beginning of each
mesting. Whera such declarations are made trustess/governors may be excluded from discussions and
decisions,
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The commitlea and reporting struclures in place suppori the Board's continued focus on four main areas of
work:

1. Raising educational standards: particulalry locusing on the performance of disadvantaged pupils (those in
racaipt of the pupl premium and pupils with SEND) and looking to strangthen secondary provision through
collaboration, alignment and best use of Cument resourfces,

2. Ensufing comphance and good praclice: using risk managemen! procedures suppored by exiemnal audils,
internal reviews and exception reporting to idantify and shara strengihs and target improvement plans at
priorities with a particular focus on safeguarding, health and safely, eybersecurity and GDPR.

4. Financial siability: looking 1o secure long ierm sustainability through good financial and HR management to
achigve qualty and valua for money from Trust contracis and services and affective succession planning.

4. Communily growth: working with partmirs to strengthen and extend the Trust's contrbution 1o suppart and
create opporiunities for pupll and siafl development and work toward shared communily objectives
including academy growth and net zero.

Continued training on appointment throwugh a planned Induclion programme for new fruslees and local
governors, alangside specilic and targeted traimng is i place. The rust ensures membership of the NGA Tor all
invalved in gowernance and CST for truslees. The new school governance streciure has enabled discussions to
lake place in schools and charily aboul what a governor does in different rofes and colleclvely was shared,

With the appoiniment of a deputy Governance professional the supporl and advice for govermnance has  Been
improwesd and resiliance devalopad a8 a régull.

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Staternent of Trusiees’ Responsibalibes.

The Board of Trustees has formally metl 5 limes during the year, Robusl oversight of funding and progress is
maintained through three commiltees and three Local Academy Boards, one for each member School,
Additionally, an overarching Secondary Board has a scrutiny role for the two secondary LABS, with the aim of
promating joint working for student advaniage and staff effectiveness. Responsibilities and aclivities for each
graup ara sl out below:
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Attendance during the year al meelings of ihe board of Trustess was as follows:

Trusied Meaiings atlended Cut of a possible

J Hopkins, Chair
J Browning

L Fathers

M Nga

R Dougall

G Chfton

H Darcy

J Milsom

T Watls

D Young

a0, pPrhoOow
2 L0 o o LR g oCnolm £ Gn

Finance Gommitlea,
FPurpose: is to ensure the highesl possible standards are set and maintained across the Acadamy Trust by

o Holding Exaculive Leaders to accound for the quality of financial (including premises) management across
e Trust

e Scrulinising, reviewing, and where delegatled authority is given, datermining on behalf of the Board items of
business delegated to it under the Scheme of Debegation

e Advising the Board on the adequacy and effectivenass of the Trust’s syslems of financial management and
internal control, its arrangements for sk managemeant and secunng economy, efficiency and alfectiveness
(value for money). Scrulinise and report on academies’ performance including, bul nat restricted to, data
relating 1o financial pedformanca and premises management.

Altendance during the year al meetings was as fallows:

Trusiae Meetings atlanded Out of a possible
J Broswming 4 5
M Mga 4 5
T Walis 5 5
J Milsom 3 5

Educational Standards (ES):

Purpose: is 10 ensure lha highest possible educalional slandards are sét and maintained across lhe Acadamy
Trust.

o Holding Execulive Laaders 1o account for the quality of aducation across the Trust

o Scrutinising. reviewing, and where delegated authority s given, determining on behall of the Board items of
busingss dalegated o it under the Scheme of Dalegation

o Advising the Board on the adequacy and quakity of the Trust's educatanal provisson

e Scrufinising and reporing on academies” performance incleding, but not restricted 10, data refating to
studenl allainment and progress

Page 27



VirtualSignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 30/76

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Compliance (C):

Purpose: is to momlor on bahalf of ihe Board compliance with statutory requiremanisincluding:

requirements for information shanng swch as GIAS, websiles, Freadom of Informalion requests and
Truslschool responses; Health and Safely, safeguarding and data prolecton (GDPR) requirements;
Funding Agreaments; affectivensss and impacl of policies and monitor effectivanass of governanca across
all levels in the TrusL

Review of value for money

Az Accounting Officer, the Chial Executive Officer has responsiblity for ensuring that the Acadamy delivers
qgood value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that valua for money rafers to the
educational and wider societal oulcomes achieved in relurm for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Truslees where value for money can be mproved,
including the wse of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy has
deliverad improved value for manay during the year by:

The joint sixth form - JMFS - continues 10 have strong destinations for students to top universities and
chosen carser paths,

Increased financial efficiency throwgh savings derved from joinl procuremant, shared stafting across the
schools and using national benchmarks to suppord budget sefting at school level. This has resulted in a
near doublimg of a trust-wida schoal improvemeant fund, relained staffing levels in tha school and enhanced
support from the cemtral toam.

The PSDS bid was revised following further review 10 £1.148m has been compleled and managed within
budget, with an agread coninbution from the trust of approx ES4dk,

A hugely positive Ofsted inspection for Filzharrys Schocl in Apell 2023 demonsirated now the | rust suppons
the school and how it has improved.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The purpose of the system of internal control

I he system Of internal control 15 designed [0 manage nsk 10 a reasonable level rather than [0 eliminale all risk ol
failure 1o achisve policles, aims and objectves. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and nol absolule
assurance of effectveness. The system of intemal contral is baged on an on-going process designed 1o identify
and prioriisa the risks o the achievemnenl of academy Trust policies, aims and objectves, o evaluate the
tikefihond of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and o manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal conlral has been in place in Abingdon Learmang Trust fos
the penod 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of tha annual report and
financial staterments.

Tha Trust's Compliance, Educational Standards and Finance commiltees have received regular updates
regarding the impact of Covid 19 on the education of pepis and its inancial implications., Although the schools
returned to fully face o face education in this year, operations remained challenging and spend pallerns
reflected this, nevertheless, we retained strong and effective financial governance through regular and, where
macessary, addional mesings of rusieas,

All those in the Trust involved in govermance again want to publicly thank every member of staff for thair focus,
positivity, and determination in making each pupil's education experience, through this latter phase of the
pandemic, as engaging and impactful as possible.

Trusteas are wary grataful to local governors in fhair support Tor their schools and communifias. ensuring that a
high quality of care, with greal leaching quality, has been maintained, and that warm and eflective relationships
with our children and voung people. and fheir families, remain in place,

It has bean anather challenging year and we have collaclivaly supparted ona anather and come through the  last
12 monihe 88 & sironger Trust communiby.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board af trustees has reviewed the key risks 1o which the academy Trusl i exposed, together with the
oparating, financial and compliance controds that have been implemented 1o mitigate those nsks. The board of
frustees & of the view thal there is a formal en-geing process for identifying. evaluating and managing the
academy lrust's significan] risks thal has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 fo 31 Awgust 2023 and
up to the date of appraval of the annual report and financal statements, This process is reguiarty reviewed by
ihe Board of rustess.

The risk and control framework

Tha Academy’s system of internal financial control is based on a framewaork of regular managemeant information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a syslem of delegation and
aceauntakality. In particulas, | includes:

. comprehensne budgeling and mondorng systems with an annual budget and penodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees:

o regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Commitlee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works amd expenditure
programmas;

. seting targels o measura financial and other performance;

J clearly defined purchasing (assef purchase or capital invesiment) gusdelines; and

. idanlification and managemeant of risks.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framewaork (continued)

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from external Ssuppligrs

The reviewers role includes giving advice on financial mallers and performing a range of checks on the
Academy’s financial systems, In parlicular the checks carried oul in the current period included.

o Governance review by CST
e Low Carbon Skills Funding Auwdit by Salix
o Financial Managemeni and Governance Review by ESFA

n A regular basis, e reviewer reports to the board of Truskeas through the finance and general purposes
commiliee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trusiees' financial
responsibilFlies. These raviews were caried out and no matenal controd issues wera identified.

Roview of offectiveness

As Accounting Officer, tha Chiat Execulive Ofhcer has responsibliity for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control, During the year in question the review has been informed by

° the work of the internal auditor and internal reviews
. the financial managemant and governance self-assessment process of the school resource management
sell-assessment tool

. e work of the executive managers wilthin (hi academy Trust who have responsiblity for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework

Thiz Accounting Officar has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of infernal
coniral by ihe finance and general purposes commiltee and a plan o ensure conlinuous improvement al the
sysiem is in placa,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on and signed
on thasr behall by:
J Hopking B
Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0) Fiona Hammans 20 Dec 2023 10:52:51 GMT (UTC +0)
Jonathan Hopkins Dr Fiona Hammans
Chair of Trusless Accounting Officer

20 December 2023 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

SIATEMENT UF HEGULAHKITY, FRUOFHIETY ANL CORMPFLAGNCE

Ag Accounling Oilicer of Abingdon Leaming Trusl | have congidersd my responsibilily (o nolily the Acsdamy
Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of materal imegularily, impropriely and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Acadermy. under the funding agreement
in place babwesn the Academy and the Secretary of Slate for Education. As parl of my consideration | have had
due regard o the requiremeants of the Academies Financial Handbook 2023.

| confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irreguiar or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or matenal non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under tha
Academy's funding agreement and the Academbes Financial Handbook 2023,

| confirm thal no instances of material iregularity, improgriety or funding non-complianca have baen discovarad

10 dale. IT any inslances are identified afler the date of this slatement, these wil be nolihed to the board of
Tristenrs and ESFA . _ _

‘:)/\_./

Fiona Hammans 20 Dec 2023 10:52:51 GMT (UTC +0)

Dr Fiona Hammans
Accounting Officer

DB 0 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES® RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company lor the purposes of company law) ara
rasponsible for preparing the Trusteas’ Reparl and tha financial statemants in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skils Funding Agency, Uniled Kingdom Accoumting
Standards {Uniled Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees Lo prepare financial stalements for each financial . Under company law, tha
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of ihe slate of affairs of the chariable company and of s incoming rescurces and application of resources,

including its income and expenditure, for that peried. In preparing these fimancial statements, the Trusiees are
required [o:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consisienily;

. abserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 1o 2023;

° make udgemants and atcounting esbmatas thal areé reasonable and prudent

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prapare the financial staternenis on the going concerm basis unless it is inappropriate o presume that the
charitable comoany will continue in business

Tha Trusiess arg responsible for keeping adequale accouniing records that are sufficient 1o show and axplain
ihe charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
af the charitable company and enable them to ensurae that the financial siatements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They ane also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the chanitable company and hence for taking
reasonable sleps for the prevanton and detection of frawd and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conducl and operation the charitable company apples
financial and ofher cantrols, which conform with the requiremants both of propraty and of good financial
management, They are also responsible for ensuring granis received from ESFA/DIE have bean applied for the
purposes imended,

The Trustees are responsibie for the mainlenance and integnly of the corporale and financial information
incleded on the charitable company’s website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
disseminalion of financial slatemeants may diffar from legislation in ather jursdictions.

Approved by order of ihe members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its bahalf by:
J Hopking

Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0)

Jonathan Hopkins
Chair of Trusteas

Date: 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OM THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDOM LEARNING TRUST

Opinion

We have audited (he Ninancial statements of Abingdon Learning Trust (the "academy’) for the year ended 31
August 2023 which comprisa the Statement of Financial Activibas, the Balance Sheat, tha Statemeant af Cash
Flows and the related notes, including a symmary of significant acoounting policies, The financial reporting
framework that hae been applied in their preparation ie applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standarde
(United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Acadamias Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Im owr opinion the financial stelements.

. give A tree and fair vien of the state of the Academy's alfairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
rasources and application of resources, including its income and expanditure for the year then ended;

. have been propery prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charlies
SORP 2019 and the Academiss Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issuwed by the Education and Skills

Funding Agency,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Slandards on Auditing (UK) (IS4 (LK) and applicable
law. Cwr respansibilities under those standards are further describad in the Auditors’ respansibilitias for the audit
of the financial statements secton of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance wilh the
ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
ihe Financial Raporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements. We belisve thal the audit evidence we have obtained B sufficient and
appropriale to provide a basis Tor our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concem

In auditing the financial stalements, we have concluded Lhal the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in tha preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have parformed, we have nol identified any malerial uncerlainties relating o evenis or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy’s ability o continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue,

Qur responsibllities and the responsibilifies of the Truslees with respect o going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Page 33



VirtualSignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 36/76

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other informalion comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors” Reporl thereon. The Trusteas are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Raporl. Our opinion on the financial statements does nol cover tha ofher information and,
gxcept lo the extent otherwise explicitly sialed in owr repori, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon, Our responsibilily is to read the olher information and, in doing so, consider whether the
oihar nformation s matenally inconsistent with the financial stalemeants or our knowledge oblained in the course
of the audit, or olherwise appears to be materially misstaled. If we idenlify such material inconsistencies or
apparent matenal misstatements, we are required o delerming whether this gives rise o a malerial
msslatement @ the inancial stalements Themselves, If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required Lo repert that fact.

W have nathing o reparl in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the irdarmalion given in the Trustees” Reporl including the Straleqic Repart for the linancial year for which
tha financeal statements are prepared is consisient with the financial stataments.

o the Trustees' Repor and the Sirategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable lagal
FeqUIRMmants.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and ils environment abdained in the course of
ihi audil, we have nol idenlified material missiatemants in the Truslees” Report including the Sirategic Report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation o which the Companies Act 2006
FEUIres Us Lo repar o wou if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have nol been kept, or retumns adequate for our audit have nol been
recaeied from branches nol visiled by ws, or

o the financial statements are nol in-agreement with the accounhng records and relurns, or

. cerlain disclosures of Trusteas' remunaration specilied by law are nol made; or

) wit have not recened all the information and explanations we require fof our audi.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustaes (who are also the directors
of the Acadamy for the purposeas of company law) ara responsible for the preparation of the financial statemants
and for being satisfied that they give a trus and fair view, and for such intermal control as the Trustees determing
is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matedial misstatement, whether
due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's abilily o
confinue as a going concem, dischksing. as applicable, matiars related o going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Truslees either intend to liquidale the Academy or to cease operalions,
of have na realistic allernative bul to do so.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 0N THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Auditors” responsibilities tor the audit of the tinancial statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial stalemaents as a whole are lres
from material misstaterment, whether dua to fraud or ermor, and to issue an Auditors’ Report that includes our
Qpanign. Reasonable assurance (s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audil conducted m
accordance with 15As (LK) will always detect a material misstalement when it exists. Missiatemanis can arise
from fraud or esror and are conssdersd material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably bea
expected to influence the economic decisions of users takem on ihe basis of these financial statements.

Bacause of the inheren! imitalions of an audit, there 13 a risk thal we will nol detecl all Wregulanities, inchuding
those leading lo a malenal misstatemant in the lmancial stalements or non-compliance with regulaton. This nsk
increases the more thal compliance with 3 law or requlation iz removed from the events and transactions
reflacied in the financial stalements, as we will be less likely 1o become aware of inslances of non-compliance.

The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurnng due 1o fraud rather than arror, as frawd involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission ar misrepresentation.

The specific procaduras for this engagamaent (hat we desigred and parformed o detec] material misstatements
in respesl of rreqularities, including fraed. wene as {ollows:

o Enguiry of managemenl and those charged with governance around aclual and potential ltigation and
claims,

e  Enguiry of managéemenl and those charged with governance 1o identify any matarial instanceés of non-
complance with laws and regulations;

o Haviewing financial stateman! disclosuras and feshing to supporting documentation o assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

e Performing audit work Lo address tha nsk af iregularities due to managament override of confrals, including
testing of journal enlries and other adjustmenls for appropriateness, evalualing the business ralionale of
significant transacbons outside the normal cowse of busmess and raviewing accounting asbimatas for
evidence of bias.

& further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial siaterments is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website al: www.[re.org ukiauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.
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ABINGDON LEARKNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ABINGDOMN LEARNING TRUST ([CONTINUED)

Usa al our report

This report is mada solely 1o the Academy’s members, as a body, in aceordance with Chapler 3 of Part 18 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has bean underfaken so that we might siate fo the Academy’s mambers
hose matlers we ane réquired 0 Staté Lo them in an Audilors’ Repor and for nd olhér purpose. To (he Tulles)
extanl permifted by law, we 30 nol Bccepl OF Bsaume responsbily 12 anyone other than e HGE’HE!T'E and its
migmbers, as o body, for our audit work, for this repord, or for the opindons wie have farmaed.

Wbt

Michael Bath BSc FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on hehalf of
James Cowper Kreston Audit

Chartered Accountants and Stalutory Auditor
2 Communicalions Road

Greanham Business Park

Greenham

Mawbury

RG19 6AB

Ciata: 20 December 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPEMDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ABINGDON
LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with 1he terms of our engagaemant letter dated 14 August 2023 and furthar o the reguirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounls Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried oul an engagement o obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Abingdon Learning Trust during the year 1 September 2022 1o 31 August 2023 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Pariament and the financial fransactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This reporl s made solely o Abingdon Leaming Trust and ESFA in accordanca with tha terms of our
engagemeant leter. Dur work has been undertaken so that we might stale 1o Abangdon Learning Trust and ESFA
those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. Tao the fullest extent parmitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anvone ather than Abingdon Leaming Trust and ESFA, for our
wirk, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Abingdon Learning Trust's accounting otticer and the reporting
accountamt

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Abingdon Learning Trust's funding agreameni
with the Secretary of Siate for Educalion dated 1 Seplember 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2022, for ensurng thal expendiure disbursed and income received is apphed for the
purposes inlendad by Paiament and the financial ransachkons canform 1o the aulhonties which govern thedm.

Qwur rezpensiblitias for this angagemeant are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are (o oblain lmited assurance and reporl in accordance with our engagement letier and the
requiremeants of the Academias Accounts Derecion 2022 o 2023. We report o you whether anything has coma
to our atlention in carning oul our work which suggesits thal in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income receved during the year 1 Seplember 2022 10 31 August 2023 have nol been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transaclions do not conform to the autharities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for Exlernal Audilors and
Rapaorting Accountant of Academy Trusis issuad by ESFA, We parformad a mited assurance engagement as
dladined in our engagement leiber,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as 1o oblain information and
explanations in order o provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence 1o express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagemeant i mode limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does nol enable us o oblain assurance thal we would Become aware of all significant matlers that
mighl be idantiad m a reasonable assurance engagemeant. Accordingly, we do nol exprass a posilive opinion.

Our engagement ncledes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularily and propriety of
ihe Academy's ncome and expendiiure,

The work undertaken to drase to cur conclusion includes.

1. rewvieswing of minutes of mestings of the Boand of | rustees and other evidenca made available 10 us,
relevant to cur consideration of reqularity;

2. a review of the objectives and activities of the Academy Trust, with reference to the income sireams and
other information available to us as audiors of the Academy Trust;

3. testing a sample of payroll payments ta stafl;

4. testing a sample of payments (o suppliers and other third parties;

5. testing a sample of grants received and other income streams;

. evaluating the internal confrol procedures and reporiing lines, and lesfing as appropriale; and

i making appropriale enquiries of the Accounting Officer.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ABINGDON
LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

in the course of pur work, nothing has come 10 our attention wheich suggesd in all malerial respects the
expenditure dishursed and income received during 1he year 1 Seplember 2022 19 31 August 2023 has nol been
applied 1o purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform 1o the autharilies
which gowarn tham.

/“‘, Coipmar s sl A

James Cowper Kreston Audit
Chartered Accouniants and Statutory Audidor

2 Commumnications Road
Graanham Business Park
Graenhanm

Newbury

RG19 GAB

Dale! 20 December 2023

Page 38



VirtualSignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 41/76

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income from:

Donations and capital

granis 3
Qther donalions amd

capital grants

Other trading aclivities 4

Imvesiments 5

Charilable aclivilies

Total income
Expenditune on:
Charitable activities 7

Tatal expenditure

Met
incomel|expenditure

)

Transfers hatwasn
funds 18

Miet rroverent in
funds before other
recognised
gainsi(losses)

Other recognised
gains/{losses):

Aciuarial gains on

defined benefit

pansion schemes 27

Met movement in
funds

Reconciliation of

funds:

Taotal funds brought
forward

Met mosvement in
funds

Total funds carried
forerard

Rastricted s restated
Unrestricted Restricted fiwed assets Total Todal
funds funds funds fiunds Tunds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ E £
4447 135,852 138 340 278,839 (25,517
AT3,024 65 6848 - 438,712 14 512
G 484 - - L1 140
G50, 181 12 855 903 1,148 0%0 14,654 174 12 558 256
1,034,136 13,057,443 1,286 430 15,378,008 12 845 441
581,989 13,253 85940 945 504 14,831 482 14,136 BE0
581,988 13,253 85948 9495 5094 14,831 482 14,136 BE0
452 147 (156 456) 2890 B35 846 527 (1,281,419
(51.000) (493,954) 54 054 - -
401,147 (&a0.4140) 835,780 546 527 (1,281,414
- 1,231,000 - 1,231,000 6,353,000
401 147 S40, 580 835,790 1,777 527 5,101,581
338 445 (1,027.114) 26,718, 730 26.031,081 20,926 480
401,147 540,550 335,740 1,777 527 & 101,581
Ta9 542 (486,524) 27,555,520 27 808 588 26,031,081
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Statement of Financial Activiles includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

S — | i | S
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07931836

Fized assaets

Tangibla assals
Current assats

Dablors
Cash a1 bank and in hand

Craditors: amounis falling due within ana

year
Het current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling dua aftar mora
Than one yoar

Mot assets axcluding pansion liability
Defined benafit pension schema liability

Total not asscts

Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds exchuding pension assat

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

BALAMCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

16

17

27

19
19

19
18

19
18
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Az restated
H023 2022
£ E
27,245,460 26 64T T2
426180 412 252
2211, 838 1,774,171
2638016 2186423
{1.170,132) (947,902)
1,467 B84 1,238 521
28,713,344 27836493
(1089, T56) (123,432)
28603 588 27.813.061
(785, 000) {1.782,000)
27 808 588 26.031.081
27,555,520 26,719,730
A0AE 4T THa 885
27 BE3 998 27,474 616
(Fas, 000y (1,782.000)
27 068 598 25 6592 616
739,552 338,445

27 808, 588 26,031,061
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

{& Company Limited by Guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07331886
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

{& Company Limited by Guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07931836

BALANCE SHEET {CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

The financial sialemeants on pages 1% to 52 were approved and aulhorised for Ssue by the Trusiess and ang
signad on their behall, by

J Hopkins

Jonathan Hopkins 20 Dec 2023 10:48:55 GMT (UTC +0)

Jonathan Hopkins

Chair of Trusiees
Date: 20 December 2023

aaeskessseidsestthn e ———— = lolcmants.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED X1 AUGUST 2023

As restated

2023 2022

Maote £ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Mat cash provided by operating activilies 1 1,754 676 584,768

Cash flows from investing activities 23 (1,303 608% {63,804d)
iCash flows from financing activities s (13,203 126 866
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 43T G685 BE2.830
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,774,171 1,111,341
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24,25 2211836 1,774,171

Page 43



VirtualSignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 47/76

1‘

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies

1.2

A summary of ihe pnncipal accounting policies adopted (which have been appled conssiently,
excepl where noted), judgements and key sources ol estimation uncerdainty, is sel oul below,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements af the Academy, which is a public benefit entily wnder FRS 102, have bean
preépared under the hisloric cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Iredand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Staterment of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Slandard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102]), the Academiss Accounts Direction 2022 1o 2023 isswed by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

Abingdon Leaming Trust meets the definition of a public benefil entity under FRS 102

Fund accounting

Unreslricted incoma funds represent those resources wihich may be used lowards mesting any af
ihe charilable objects of the Acadamy al the discretion of ihe Truslees.

Resticied fed asset funds are resources which are to be appled {o specific capifal purposes
imposied by the funders where the assel acquired or created is held for a specilic purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other resiricted funds received with restrictionsimposed by the
funderidonor and include grants from the Departiment for Educalion Group.

Investment incame, gains and losses ang allocated o the appropriate fund,
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.3

14

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement (o the funds, the receipt
is prixbable and the amouwnl can ba maasurad raliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Aclivilies on a receivabde basis. The balance af
income received lor specific purposes bul nol expended during the period iz shown in the redevant
funds on the Balance Sheat Wheara incoma is recaived in adwance of meeling any parformance-
related condiions there is not uncondifional entiflement to the iIncome and its recognition is deferred
and included n creditors as deferred income untl the perlormance-ralated condions ang mel
Where entitlement occurs bafora income is received, the incomea s accneed.

Ganeral Annual Grant is recognised n full in the Slatement of Financial Activities in the year for
which il is receivable and any abatement in respact of the year 5 deducled from income and
recognised as a liabilily.

Capital granis are recognised when there i entittement and ara nol deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in
the: restricted fixed assat fund.

Donations

Dionationg are racognissd on a recaivabla bagis (whana thers are no palormance-reslaled condiliong)
whara iha receipl is probabla and tha amownt can ba raliably maasurad,

Other income

Othar incoma, including the hire of lacilies, is recognised in the year it 5 receivable and 1o the
axtanl tha Academy has provided e goods or services,

Where assels and received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Trust, the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet al the poinl when the risks
and rewards of ownarship pass to the Trust, which is on signing of the transfer agreament with the
transferring Trusl. An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy
inta tha Trust within Income and donations and capital grants.

Expenditursa

Expendiure is recognised once lhere s a legal or consiructive obligalion lo transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefis will be required in
settiement and the amound of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expendilure 15 classilied by
activity. The costs of each aclivity are made up of the tolal of direcl cosils and shared costs,
incfuding support cosls involved in underiaking each activity, Direct cosis atinbulable to a single
aclivity are allocaied directly to thal aclivily, Shared costs which contribide to more than one activity
and supporl cosls which are nol altribulable 1o a single aclivily are apporlioned between Ihose
aclivities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central stafl costs are allocated on the
basgis of lime spent, and deprecialion charges aliscaled on the porlion of the assel's use

Charitable activities

Expardilure on charilable activities are cosls incurred on the Academy's educational operations,
including support costs and those costs redating 1o the governance of the Academy apportioned o
charilable aclivities.

All expenditure iz inclusive of irecovarable VAT,
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.5 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.8. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources (o continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue (o adopl the going concern basis of accounting in

preparing tha financial statemants.

1.6 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All aanate costing £2.000 or mare are capitalised a8 angible fixed assels and ane carriad al cosl, net

of depreciation and any orovision [or imoairment.

Premises subject 1o long lease have been valued on a depreciated replacement costs basis by a
qualified valuer on the dale the long leasehold was transfered ino the Academy.

Where tangible flixed assels have been acguimed with the aid of specific grants, either from the
gavernment or from the privale secior, they are included in the Balance Sheet al cosi and
depreciated over their expecled useful econaomic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requirng the confinued use of the asset, the relaled grants are credited 1o a restriclad
fixed assel fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expendilure
Account and carmed forward in the Balance Sheel, Depreciation on ihe reélevan assets is chargad
direcily to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorparating Income

and Expanditure Account.

Tangible Nxad agsals ame camed al coat, nel of depracialion and any provigion Tor npairmeant,
Dapraciation s not chargad on fraehcld land, Dapraciation is provided At rates calculated to weite off
the cosl of fived assots, less their estimatled residual value, over thair expected usaful lives on tho

follinwing bages
Long-term leasehold Land - gwver the term of the lease
Long-term leasehold property - 2% per annum on cosi (buildings only)
Furniture ard equipment - over 5 -10 yaars
Plant and machinery - gwer § years
Compuler equipment = OVEF 3 pears
Kotor vehiclas - over 5 yaars

A revieny for impairment of a fived asset is camied ouwl il evenls or changes in crcumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalls betwean the camying
valug of lixed assels and their recoverable amounis are recognised as impairments. Impasrment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expendifure

Aeeaunt.

1.7 Operating leases

Renlals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating

Income and Expendilure Accound on a8 siraight line basis over the kease larm.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.8

1.9

Taxation

The Academy is considered o pass the lests sel oul in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and tharefora it meals the dalinition of & charitable company for UK corpotaticn tax purposes,

Accordingly, the Academy is polentially exempt from faxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, 10 the exten! that such income of gains are
applied exclusively 1o charitable purposes.

Daebtors

Trade and other dehtors are recognised at the setflement amount.  Prepayments are valued at the
amaunt propaid,

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash al bank and in hand incledes cash and shorl-term highly liquid invesimenis with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.

1.11 Liabllities and provisions

Liablities and provisions are recognised when there is an obbgation al the Balance Sheet date az a
resull of a past event, il is probable thal a ransier of econamic benalil will be required in seltlement.
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabiblies are recognised al the amount
that the Academy anficipates it will pay 1o sefile the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions aré measured al the best astimate of the amounts required 10 settle the obligation. Where
thie @ffact of ke lima value of monay is material, tha provision s based on the present value ol those
amounis, discounied at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects tha risks specific to tha liability, Tha
urmwirsding of the discount is recogrised within inleres) payable and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The Academy anly halds basic financial insirumanis. as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and ihair measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assels - trade and olher dabiors are basic inancial inslrumenis and are debl instruments
measured al amorlised cost as detailed in note 15 Prepaymenis are not financial instruments.
Amounts due lo the Academy’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value lass any impairmeant
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financiad instrumeant and is measured at face value.

Financial liabifites - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amorlised cosi as detailed in noles 16 and 17, Taxalion and socal securily are not
included in (b francal mstroments desclosune defindion. Deferred income 5 nol deamed 1o be a
financial liabdity, as the cash setflament has already taken place and there is an obligation fo defiver
sernces ralther than cash or anclher financial instrurment.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefils 1o employees of ihe Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{*TP5"} and the Local Government Pansion Schema (“LGPS®), These are defined benefil schames

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and conimbulions are calculated so as 1o spread the cost of
pensions over emplayeas’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cosl is a
substantially level percentage of current and fulure pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Acluary on the basis of guadrennial valualions using a prospective
wnit credit mathod. TPS i an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no wnderlying assats to assign
between employers, Consequenlly, the TPS is Irealed as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposas and the confributions recognised in the panod to which they ralate.

Tha LGPS is a fundad multi-emplaoyer scheme and ihe assels are hald separately from thosea of the
Academy in separate Truslee adminisiered funds. Pension scheme assels are measured al fair
value and labilties are measured on an acluarial basis using the projecied unit credit method and
discounted al a rale equivalent to the current rale of refurn on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and cuwrency to the liabilifies. The actusrial valualions are oblained al least
trignnially and are updated al each Balance Sheel date. The amcunis charged o operating surples
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, sattlements:
and curtailiments. Thay are included as parl of siaff costs as incurred. Met inberest on the el defirsd
benefit liabilily'assel is also recognized in the Statemeant of Financial Activities and comprises the
inferest cost on 1he defined benelil abbigation and interest ncome on the scheme assals, calculatad
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assels at the beginning of the peripd by the rate used o
discount the benafil obligatons. The difference babwoan the interest income on he schama assels
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and lossas ara recognised immediataly in other recognised gains and losses.

1.14 Agency arrangemants

The Trust acts as an ageni to Oxfordshire Secondary Schools Headteacher Association [OSSHTA).
Payménts réciived from  members 8% subscfiptions  and  subsaquent  debursements  of
administration, conference and meeling costs are excluded from the Statement of Financial
Activibies as the Trust does nol hive cantrol over the chartable appheation of the funds, The funds
recaived and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 32.
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimales and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumsiances.

Critical acoounting estimates and assumplions;

Tha Academy Trusi makes estimates and assumplions conceming tha Tulure. Tha resulling accounting
aslimates and assumptions will, by definiton, seldom aqueal the related aciual resulis. The astimates and
assumptions that have a signiicant risk of causing a matenal adjusiment (o the carmang amounis of
assets and liabilibes within the next financial wiar arg discussed Delow,

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benafil liakility depends on a
number of Tactors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a vanety of assumplions. The
assumplions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension lablity. Furthermare a roll forward approach which projects rasults from the latest full actuanal
valuathion performed at 31 March 2018 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pansions liability at 31
August 2023, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuanal valuaison would impacl on the carmeng amount of the pansion liabilily.

Critical areas of judgement:

The judgments thal have had a significant effect on amounts recognised  in the financial statements are
ihnsa concarmdng the cholce of depreciation polickms and assal as,
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FO
INCOME FROM DONATIONS

Donations
OIE/ESFA capital grants
Granis

Total 2022 as restaled

R THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
AND CAPITAL GRANTS

OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

School uniform and servicas
Rantal incoma
Crther income including BASC

Total 2022

INVESTMEMNT INCOME

Bank interest receivabla

Total 2022

Restricted As restated
Lnrastrictad Restricted  fixed asset Total Tatal
funds funids funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2l2d
£ £ E E E
4,447 43,650 - 48,1086 41,196
- - 158,341 138,340 II'E-E.?'13:|
- 82,193 - 52 193 -
4 447 135,852 138,340 278,834 {25.517)
1728 A5 8750 (83,124) (25.517)
Unrestricted Restricted Todal Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ E £
18 645 B2.274 81,922 4 B3
5,180 - 75480 T4 443
2TH 198 3414 ZB1,610 235,188
373024 AR &8R 438712 34 512
251,401 63,111 314 512
Lnrestricted Total Tatal
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ E E
& 484 6484 189
1590 190
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(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

. FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL QFERATIONS

Linresiricted Restricted Todal Todal
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
E E £ £
DFE/ESFA grants
Ganaral Annual Grant (GAG) - 11,561 341 11,581,341 10,784,793
Oither DFE/ESFA grants
Pupil Pramium - 266, 958 266,958 184717
LIF S - 68,187 &6 167 65, 046
Othar CIE/ESF A revenue grants - 1,861,511 1,881,511 218 B3
- 13,775,978 13,775,978 11,7331+
Dther Government grants
EEM allncation - 219211 219,211 124,929
- 219211 219,211 124 929
Other income from the Academy s
educational operations a&0, 181 8 804 658 985 &aa, 144
BRO,1E1T 140038583 14654174 12 556 258
BARO181T 140035083 14654174 12 B68 286
Taotal 2022 227328 12328528 12556 258
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST

{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

ENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

7. Expenditure

As restated
Siall Costs Premises Oiher Tatal Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ E E E
Academy’s educational
operations:
Direct cosls i.908, 168 - 20480684 17,B52232 10818172
Allocated support cosis 1.801,117 - 1,378,133 3,279,250 3,318,688
10,807 285 - 4024197 14,811 482 14136860
Total 2022 as rastaied 10,5381 731 733,519 2 821,610 14136880

Im 2023, of thes total scpandilure of £14 831 482 (2022: £14 136 8800, £581 080 was to unresiricled funds
(2022 E407 194), E13253 800 (2022 £12 027 540) was o restricted funds and E005 584 (20232

E&DZ 417 Vv wad o resincled fixed assels Tunds,

a. Analysis of expenditure by aclivities

Activities As rastated

undertaken Support Total Todal

direscily COgls funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2022

£ E £ £

Educational operations 11,552 232 3,279,250 14 831,482 14 136 BE0
Total 2022 as restated 10,818,172 3318688 14,136,880
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ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

a. Analysis of cxpenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

As restated
Tolal Total
Activities funds funds
2023 2023 2022
g £ £
Stall costs 9,166 900 9,186,900 B.BE3 35T
Depreciation 900,943 900,543 TBO.5T3
Tachnology costs 406, 305 406 355 2648877
School frigs expenditure AT0,054 aro.no4 232 848
Stafl expenses and other costs a0.18r 20157 67.604
Oither direct costs 172,408 172 408 151,634
Educalional Suppas 45538 349 09340 323,074

Educabonal professional fees 146 368 1456 368 -
11,B82232 11852232 10818172

Tatal 2025 as restaiad i0. 818472 10,818.472
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10.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of cxpenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support cosls
As restated
Tolal Total
Activities funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
Pansion finance costs 79,000 78,000 126,004
Siaff costs 1,640, 385 1,640 385 1,718,374
Cataring supplies 282877 282 877 255 658
Insurance 58,520 58,520 51,224
Emergy 177 882 177,882 150 884
Claaning 231 465 231 465 228,736
Rates 31,004 31,004 48 571
Professional 227 588 227 5B4 178,397
Maintenance of premises and agquipmant 268,228 268 228 287,140
Oither support cosls 258,101 258101 230,141
Governante costs 24 200 24 200 27 580
3,279,250 3,279,250 3,318,688
Total 2022 as restated 3,318,688 3,318,688
Met income/{expenditure)
Met incomef{axpanditura) Tor the vear includes:
2023 2022
£ £
Oparating lease rentals 7818 4 T4%
Depreciation of tangibde fixed assets S00 943 0,573
Fees paid lo audiors for;
- audit 20500 18,700
= gthar sérvices 2715 2,500

Staff

a. Staff costs
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10.

Staff (continued)

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Stall coste durimg the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social sacurity costs

Peansion costs

Agency siaff costs

b. Staff numbers

The avarage numbear of persons employad by the Acadamy dunng the year was as follows:

Teachers

Administration and support

Management

Page 55

2023 2022

£ £

7,584 506 T 317 964
812 B58 747 B29
1,916 658 2416,954
10,714 022 10,482,747
893 283 98 984
10,807 285 10,581,731
2023 2022

M. Ma.

108 1249

121 111

28 23

255 2E3
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MHOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

10.  Staff (continued)
¢. Highar paid staff

Tha number of employess whose employee benefits (excluding employer pansion cosis) exceeded

£60 000 was:
2023 2022
Mo, Mo
I ik baaned E80,001 - E70,000 5 5
Im the band £70,001 - £E80.000 1 2
In fke Baaned E80,001 - £90,000 2 1
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 - 1

Pension contributions for the above employees amounted to £146,876 (2022 £155.053)in the year 1o 31
Auwsgust 2023,

d. Key managemant personnal

Thaz kisy management personnel of the Acsdemy comprise the Trustess and the sxecutive toam as listed
on page 1. The iotal amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
ampoyer national iInsurance contnibutions) necenvsad by Kay manageameni parsonngl for thair services to
thia Academy was £558.875 (2022 ;| £628.452).

11.  Related party transactions - trustees’ remunaration and expenses

Diuring the yaar ended 31 Augusi 2023, ENIL Trusbes expensas have beenincurred (2022 - EMIL),

12, Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The Academy Trusl has opted inlo the Depanment for Educalion’s risk prolection arangement (RPA), an
allernalive (o insurance where UK govemment funds cover [05ses thal anise. This scheme prolects
Governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acls, eorors. of oMSSIoNSs coourming whilst on
academy Dusiness, and provides cover of up 1o £10,000,000, It s nol possibe to qguantify the Govermors
and officers indemnily element from the overall cost of the RPA schema membearship.
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Contral services

The Academy has provided the following central senvices to its academies during tha year:

. Sirategic direction

) HR

Finance

Fayrall

Recrullment

Audit

Insurance

Governance and Professional

Health and Salely

IT Managed Provision (additional charga)

The Academy charges for these services on the following basis:
6% of GAG

The actual amounis charged during the year were as follows:

Fitzharrys School
John Mazon School
Rush Common School

Total
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E E

233 480 206,316
382,030 242,745
96010 87,080
03,500 B46,171




VirtualSignature Transaction Ref. HHRQ-6GBC-KS2N 20 Dec 2023 10:52:53 GMT (UTC +0) D 1/1 P 62/76

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

14. Tangible fixed assots
Leasehold Furnituwre & Plant & Maotor Computer
property  equipment equipment voRicles equipment Taotal
E £ £ E E £
Cost or valuation
Al 1 Seplember 2022 28,557,070 170,290 1162544 @512 383997 30280413
Additions 55,1496 115257 1235045  3.000 10032 144843
Dizsposals - - - (6,200) - {6,200)
At 31 August 2023 28612 268 285547 2397503 3312 423929 I 722847
Depreciation
AL 1 Seplember 2022 2278 5921 84218 Bp2420 5820 320244 3582441
Charge for the year 488 041 21138 288902 2,063 81,802 800, 946
On disposals - - - {B.200) - (6,200)
At 31 Ausgust 2023 2,778 862 115,356 1169331 1482 2146 4477187
Met book value
AR 31 August 2023 25,833 404 170191 1228262 1,820 11,783 27,245,460
At 31 August 2022 26,277,148 TEO7Z2 280115 ga3 63,753 26887872
15. Deblors
2023 2022
£ £
Trade deblors w2112 £2141
Other deblors and VAT repayabla 142 496 168,804
Prapayments and accrued income 191,572 221,307
426,180 412252

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
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HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Ealix loan

Trade credilors

Other taxation and social security
Pensions

Orither creditors

Aceruals and deferred income

Dieferred income at 1 September
Rasourcas defarred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

Daferred income at 31 August

As restated

2023 2022

£ £
13,678 13,403
252 551 B0.ATE
183,323 174 477
197,138 181,011
10,131 &0 740
513214 408 205
1,170,132 G847 902
2023 2022

£ £

224 829 170417
288,133 224 B25

(224,829) (170.417)
2B%.133 224 829

Dafarred income relates io grants received in advance for universal infant free school meals, rates relief

far 2023-24, school rips and othar income,

Croditors: Amounts falling due after more than ane yvear

SALIX loans

Prior year adjustmeants

2023
£

108,758

As reslated
2022
£

123,432

A prior yaar adjusimant has bean made &8 | was idantifed thal monies mcaived in reapact of Balix kKans
ware included in incoms, with loan repaymeants incledad with axpandiurs. As o resull, price year creditors

wang undarsiated and Both incoming and culgoing resources ware ovarsiatad,

The impact of this adjustmant in the pror year is 1o increasa the Salix loan balance within creditors by
E126 866, reduce expenditure by 13,134 and reduce incoming resources by £140,000. Net cash inflows

from aoariling actiilien ane dacraased by £126,866 -
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Statement of funds
As Restated
Balance af 1 Balance at
Seplembar Translers Gaina' 31 August
2022 Incama  Expenditure iruout {Loasas) 2023
E £ £ E E E
Unrestricted
funds
General
unrestricied
funds 338 445 1,034,138 {561, 004) {51,000) - T35, 542
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 814 604  11.561.341  (11.518.2864) (493,954) - G T2
Othar
DIEESFA
grants - T33 421 (733.421) - - -
Pupil pramium a7, 145 266 055 (275,889) - - HB.218
LIIFSEN - 66,187 (BB, 167 - - -
SEMN income - 219,211 (219,211} - - -
Oihver income - 210,344 (210,344) - - -
Salix loan {126 B6E) - 13,402 - - (113.464)
Pension
raserve (1,782 000} - (244,000) - 1,231,000 (705, 000)
(1,027 114) 13,057,443 (13,253 8089) (493,954) 1,231,000 (486,524)
As Restated
Balance al 1 Balance at
Seplember Translers Gaing/ 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure ireil {Lossas) 2023
E £ £ £ E £
Featricted
fixed asset
funds
Fizad assal
funds 26, 697 972 - (900,943) 1,448,431 - 27,245,460
Devolved
Tormla capatal - 47 122 (B4 B57) 47 529 - -
Additional DF - 91,218 - {B,838) - 82,382
Capital
expendiiure
from GAG 21,758 - - 205820 - 22T 878
Cibver capital
funding - 1,148,080 - (1.148,080) - -
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance ai 1 Balance at
Soeplember Transiers Gainal 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure irufoul |Lossas) 2023
E E L £ E E
26.719.730 1,286,430 (Ga5 564) 544 054 - 27,555,520
Total
Restricted
funds 2R EG2 616 14,343,873  (14,249,493) 51,000 1,231,000 27 068 556
As Restated
Balance at 1 Balance at
Seplember Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Incoma  Expenditure invesiat {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ E £
Total funds 26,031 081 15378008 (14 831,482) - 1,231,000 27 608 588
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Statement of funds (continued)
The spacific purposes for which tha funds are fo be applied are as fallows:
Al gemeral funds ara hald Tor the purpose of educalion in line with the academy's obiectives.
General annual granl to be spenl on educational purposes as specified by the ESFA. Tha olher
DIEJESFA restricted fund represents other funding received from the governmenl which does not form
part of GAG bul is received in relation to specific purposes.

Pension reserve deficil represents the fulure pension funding requirements shich will B mMEL Iram Tuiung
@mplover pinsian conlfibulions.

Oiver Imcome consists of donations and other Income to be used as spacified by the donor.
Reslricled fixed assets are funds representing the amounts invested in fived assots.

Davoivad formula Capital 15 ESFA gQranl monies 10 DE Spent on prenises.

Trangfers between restricted, wnrestricted and restricted fixed assets funds reprasents funding of fueed
assal additions.

Under the funding agreement with ihe Secretary of State, the Academy was nol subject 1o alimit en The
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Az rastated
Balance at Az restated  Asresialed  Balance al
1 September  Asresiated  As restated Transfars Gaing/ 31 Augusl
2021 Income  Expenddure infout {Losses) 2022
£ £ E £ £ E
Genearal
unresincled
funds 264 9492 480 64T (407, 144) - - 238,445
Restricted
general funds
Ganeral Annual
Grant (GAG) 484 852 10,784,793 {10,152,828)  (302,213) - 814 804
Oiher
DIEESEA,
grants - BB 623 (518,623) - - -
Pupil premium 74 876 asdL 77 (372,445) - - B7.14A8
LIIFSK - &5, 045 {65, 048) - - -
SEN intome - 124 9249 {124 529) - - -
Odher income - 569,810 (5E60.810) - - -
Salx loan i14,141) - (112,725) - - (126 866)
Cowid-19
Catch-up
funding 73,143 - (73,143] - - -
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Statement of funds (continued)

Hension
TEEErE

Restricted
fined asset
funds

Fixed asasal
funds

Davolvad
foarmula capdtal
Additional DF
C-apital
expandifura
from GAG

Privala sactor
capital
sponsorship

Total
Restricted
funds

Total funds

Balance at As restated  As restaled Balance at
1 Seplember As restaled  As restated Translars Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income  Expenditure infout (Lossas) 2022
£ E £ £ E E
(F . 237.000) - (838, 000y - 5,303,000 (1.782,000]
(6.618,27T0) 12427 818 (12,927 549) (2302.213) 6 .393 000 (1,027,114}
As restated
Bakance at As resiated  Asrestated  Balance at
1 September  As restated  As reslated Transfers Gains! 31 August
2021 Income  Expenditura inout (Lossas) 2022
£ £ £ 4 E L
25 047 685 - (780,573) 1,400 BAD - 26 657 472
32,304 46 332 (21 544) (&7, 0B5) - -
1,262,772 26,955 - (1,289,727) - -
R - - 21,758 - 21,758
- 3,589 - (3,588) . -
27,282 758 76876 (B02,117) 182,213 - 26,719,730
20684 488 12,504,794 {13, 720.666) (1400007 393,000 25692 616
20929480 12,985,441 {14,136 860) (140,000 5303000  26.031,081
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Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances al 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

As restated
2023 2022
E £
Rush Common School 78,124 202 580
John Mason School 517 826 481 544
Fitzharrys School 151,073 265,725
Central funds 201,040 142,998
Total before Ted assel funds and pansion resena 1,048,068 1,083,311
Resirictad fixed assal fund 27555520 26719730
Pansion resarve (FE50000 (1,782000)
Taotal 27808588 26031081
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by sach academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and
educational CHher Other costs
support staff  support stafl  Educational exchuding Todal Taotal
cosls cogts supplies  depreciation 2023 2022
£ E E £ £ £
Rush Common
School 1,518,551 120,814 212 355 147 094 1,656,218 1,865 404
John Mason
School 4,215,722 T20,002 902 9446 K27 067 6,365,737 5 GRG. B4R
Fitzharmys
SChool 2,736,047 471,881 TBE BT 289 528 4,394 129 3,532,950
Central funds 270 448 SB8 420 (129 274) 157,881 B2T 455 1,303,085
Pansion
BXpENSS 425 732 (181.732) - 244,000 238,000
Academy 9,166,900 1,719,385 1,772,704 1,271,550 13,930,539 13,356,287
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Analysis of net assets betwaen funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - Current year

Tangible fixed assets

Current assels

Creditors due within one year
Craditors dug in mose than one year
Provisions for liabllies and charges

Tatal

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Tangibla fixed assels

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors dua in mose than one year
Frovisions for liabithes and charges

Tatal

Resiriciad

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed assat Tolal
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £

TEE 282 - 26490178 27,245,460
547144 1,025 525 1,085 342 2638015
(SB3.760) (588,343 - {1.470,132)
209580 (150,708) - (108 756)
- (785 000) - (795 000)

T39, 542 (486,524) 27555530 27 808 583

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  Tioed assat Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2023

B £ F £

- - 26 65T T2 26657672

438 445 1,826 220 21,758 2,186 423
- (947,902) - (947,902)
- (123,432) - (123.432)
- (1,782,000) - (1,782, 0007

338 445 (1,027, 114y 28,719,730 26,031,061
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Reconciliation of net incoemel{expenditure) to net cash Aow from operating activities

2023 2022
E E
Met incomel(expenditure) for the year {(as per Statement of Financial
Activities) S4B 527 (1.281.4149)
Adjustments for:
Diepraciation 900 943 TBO.573
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (138,340 (73.287)
Dividends, interest and renls from investmeants i6,484) (190)
Fension adjustmeants 244 000 H38,000
(Increasel/decrease in deblors (13,528) 81,296
InGriase in creditors 231 858 164,795
MNat cash provided by operating activities 1,754 678 589, 788
iCash flows from financing activities
2023 2022
£ E
Salix lpan receipls - 140,000
Repayments of borrowing (13.403) (13,134)
MNet cash jused in)/provided by financing activitios (13.403) 126 866
Cash flows from investing activities
2023 2022
£ £
Dividends, inlarest and renis from investmeants G484 180
FPurchase of tangible fixed assats (1,448,432) {1,490 860)
Capital grants from DFE Group 138340 73287
{Increasa)/decrease in capital accrued income - 1,353 579
Het cash used in investing aclivities (1,303,808} (53,804)
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Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2025 202
E E
Za5h in hand and at bank 2,211 B36G 1,774,171
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,211 836 1,774171
Analysis of changes in net debt
Al

Seplembsar Al 31 August

2022  Cash llows 2023

E E 3

Cash o1 bank and in hand 1774171 437 GE8 2.211.636
Diebt due within 1 year (194 444) (16,400) (210.814)
Debt due after 1 year (123.432) 13,876  (100.756)

1,456 325 434 841 1.6891,266

Cash investments

Includad within bank batances of £2.211,838 are amounts of E500.000 in term deposits wilh a maiurity
data of 30 September 2023,

Pension commitmants

The Academy's employees belong fo two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Schame
England and Wales {TPS) for academic and related stafl, and the Local Governmeant Pansion Schame
{LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Oufordshire County Council. Bath are multi-eamployear
defined benefit schemes.

The [alest actuanal valuation af he TPS relabed 1o he panod ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31
Karch 2018,

Contributions amounting to £197,138 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £181.011)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a sialulory, contributory, defined benefil schame, governed by
e Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership B automatic for full-lima teachers in
academias. All taachars have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enralmant.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, &z a

parcentage of salary - these contributions are cradited to the Exchequer, Retirement and olher pension
benefils are paid by public funds provided by Parfiament.
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Fension commitments (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Fension Scheme

The GOvVernmenl Acluary, using normal acluanial principles, conducts a 1ofmal acluanal review of ha
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directicns
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specily the level of Tuture
cantributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumplions aboul the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors,

The 31 Maich 2018 TPS aciuarial valuation resulls were implemented from 1 Seplember 2019, The key
alements of the valuation and subseguent consultation are:

) employer conlribulion rates sat at 23 68% of pensionable pay (inclueding a 0.08% administration
lewvy)

. Iotal schema habilities (pensions curmently in payment and the estimaled cosl of fulure benefits] for
sarvice to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assats (estimated fulure contributions
together with the nofional investments heid at the valuation date) of £186,100 milion, giving a
nolnal past sarice deficit af E22,000 millan

. ihe SCAPE rade, sed by HMT, is used to determing {he notional investment raturn. The current
SCAPE rate is 2 4% above the rate of GPI1, assumed real rate of relurn is 2 4% m excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed lo be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including eamings growih s 4,45%,

The lales! actuarial TPS valuation rasulls, as &t 31 March 2020, were released in Oclober 2023, The

revised employer contribution rale, arising from this valuation, i due to be implemented from 1 April
2024

The employer's pension cosis paid 1o TPSin the year amounted (o £1,270 476 (2022 - E1,178,600).

A copy of the waluation report and supporling documentation is on lhe Teachers' Pensions website
(hllps:ifesen teacharspansions. coukinewslamployars/201 304 teachers-pansions-valuabon-rapar aspx ).

Undar tha defnitions sat oul in FRS 102, tha TPS is an unfunded muli-employer pension schema, Tha
Acadermy has accounted for i#s contributions to the scheme as il it were a deflined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGFS is a funded defined bensfil pension scheme, wilh the assels held in separale rusies-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was E610,000 (2022
= £546,000), of which employer's contributions folalled £475.000 (2022 - £427.000) and employess
contributions tolalled £ 135,000 (2022 - £118.000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.3
per cant for employers and batwean 5.5 and 12.5 par cant lfor employees.

As described in nofle the LGPS obBgation relates to the employees of the Academy, who werg the
employvees ransferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were aligible lo, and did, join the Scheme in the yvear. The obligation n respect of emplovess who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy al the balance sheat date,

Parliament has agread, al the requast of the Secratary of Siale for Education, o a guarantes that, in the

el af academy closure, oulstanding Local Governmaent Pension Schame liabilities would be mal by tha
Daeparirmant for Education. The guaranmbes cama into forcs on 18 July 2013,
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Fension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rale of incraase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in paymentinflation
Discount rate for schema liabilities

Inflation assumption (CP1)

2023
Ve

&.00%
3.00%
5.20%
3.00%

2022
o

S30%%
S05%
4.25%
3.05%

The currenl moralily assumplions include sulficient allowance for fulure improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expecialions on retiremeant age 65 are;

Ratiring today
Males

Femalas

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

2023
Years

3.0
25,5

223
269

2022
Years

222
24.5

Z31
261

The below sensitivity analysis shows how with & change in principle asusplions he schama obligations

and subsequent Rability would increase

0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate
0.1% increasa In the Salary INCréase Rale
0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rale (TP}

Share of scheme assels

The Academy's share of the asssts in the scheme was;

Equities
Crikver bonds

Proparly
Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets
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2023
E0CD
178
17
188

2022
E000
198
ir
184

Al 31 Acgust AL 3T Auvgust

2023 2022

£ £
5,272,560 4,861,250
1,171,GAO 992,250
Ta2,300 585,350
146 460 6,150
7,423,000 6,615,000
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27. Pension commitments (continued)

The actusd raturn on scheme asseds was E(91.000) (2022 - £E{378.000}).

The amaunis recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as fcllows:

Currani service cost
Interest imcome
Intarest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Changes in the presant value of the defined benefil chligations were as fallows:

At 1 September
Current semvice cosl
Inlerest cost

Employes contributions
Actuarial gains
Benefits paid

At 3 Avgust

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assels were as follows:

At 1 September
IMErgsl income
Actuarial losses
Employer contributions

Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August
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2023 2022
r 2
(640,000)  {1,238,000)
262,000 110,000
(37,0000 (236,000
(7190000 (1,385,000
2023 2022
£ £
8,397,000 13,544,000
B40,000  1.239,000
371,000 236,000
135,000 115, 10080
{1,503.000) {B.771,000)
(103,000) {70,000)
7837000  8357,000
2023 202z
£ £
815000 6,407,000
202,000 110,000
(272,000) (378,000
475,000 427,000
135,000 119,000
{103,000 {70,000)
7.142,000  6,615.000
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28.

.

ABINGDON LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantes)

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

AldS LY
E £
The amaunt shown in the Balance Sheet i%:
Prasaent value of defined benefit obligation (8,118,000) {B.357 000)
Fair value of schemea assats 7.323.000 6,615,000
Dafined banefit pension schema liability (795,000) {1,782, 000

Operating lease commitmeants

At 31 August 2023 the Academy had commilments to make fulure minimum lease paymenis wunder non-
cancellable operaling leases as follows:

2023 2022
E E
Amounts payable:
Within 1 year 32 568 ¥.814
Between 1 and 5 years 53658 -
66 GG 78219

Related party transactions

Chadng 1o the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drasn from lecal
jpublic and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All fransactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
ihe requiremeanis of tha Academy Trust Handbook . including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
an or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial
regulations and normal procurament praceduras. rélating 1o connected and ralated parly transactions.

Mo related parly iransactions took place in ihe penod of accounl, other than cerain Trustees'
remuneration and expenzses already disclosed innote 11,

Members' liability

Each membear of the chartable company underakes o contribute 1o the asgeis of the Company in the
event of il being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within ona year after hefshe ceases o be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding E10 for the debts and kabilities contracted
before hafshe ceases to be a member.

Post balance sheet events

As al 1 September 2023 Ruzh Commaon pre school joined the Abingdon Learning Trust
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ABINGDON LEARKNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

3z, Agency arrangements

Ther Ahingdon Lessrming Trust acts as agent for OS5HTA. Included within the accounts is a balance of
E10.178 (2022 EF.788) in relation to monies held on behalf of O5SHTA. Paymenis received of E24. 415
(2022: £4,757) and disbursomants made of £14,237 (2022: £4,757) are excluded from tha accounts,
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